ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 25, 2001
8:10 a. m

EDUCATI ON MEMBERS PRESENT

ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve
ve

Con Bunde, Chair
Brian Porter

Joe G een

Peggy W/ son
Gary Stevens
Reggi e Joul e

G et chen CGuess

Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i
Represent at i

EDUCATI ON MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present

HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES MEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve

Fred Dyson
John Coghi |
Peggy W/ son
Gary Stevens
Reggi e Joul e
Sharon Ci ssna

HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Vic Kohring

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmation Heari ngs:

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion

Ceorgi a Sue Cast - Bet hel
Patricia Trunman - Pal ner
Cynthia Curran - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COW TTEES - 1- April 25, 2001



Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

D ane Heard - Eagle R ver
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

GEORG A SUE CAST, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion

PO Box 1646

Bet hel , Al aska 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practi ces Conm ssi on.

PATRI CI A TRUVAN, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

125 West Evergreen

Pal mer, Al aska 99645

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion.

DI ANE HEARD, Appoi nt ee

to the Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

9633 Krishka Circle

Eagl e River, Al aska 99577

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Education & Early Devel opnent.

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Appoi nt ee

to the Professional Teaching Practices Comm ssion

(No address provided)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-30, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 2- April 25, 2001



CHAIR CON BUNDE called the joint neeting of the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Education and the House Health, Education & Socia

Services Standing Commttee to order at 8:10 a.m Present at
the call to order from the House Special Conmmttee on Education
were Representatives Bunde, Porter, Geen, Stevens, Quess, and
Wl son. Representative Joule joined the neeting while it was in
pr ogr ess. Menbers present from the House Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Committee were Representatives Dyson

Wl son, Stevens, and Coghill. Representatives Joule and Ci ssna
joined the neeting while it was in progress. [ The m nutes for
HB 239, HB 171, HB 218, and SB 86 are found in the 8:40 a.m
House Special Commttee on Education m nutes of the sane date.]

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmmi ssion
Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the conmmttees would consider the
confirmations of Georgia Sue Cast, Patricia Truman, and Cynthia
Curran to the Professional Teaching Practices Conmm ssion, and
the confirmation of D ane Heard to the Board of Education &
Early Devel opnent.

Nunmber 124

CHAI R BUNDE asked Georgia Sue Cast what experiences she has had
that would qualify her for a position [on the Professional
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion].

GEORG A SUE CAST, Appointee to the Professional Teaching
Practices Conm ssion, testified via tel econference. She stated
that she has taught since 1980 and this would be her second term
on the comm ssion.

CHAIR BUNDE asked why she [wants to be on the Professional
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion].

MS. CAST responded that she firnmly believe that teachers need to
have a hand in policing their profession.

CHAI R BUNDE renmarked that he couldn't agree nore. He said, "If
nore teachers were to be a little stricter in getting rid of the
deadwood, we would be well served.”

Nunber 0219

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 3- April 25, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked what the nmmjor issues are that [the
Prof essi onal Teaching Practices Comm ssion] has dealt with in
the past, and what would she like to see the conm ssion be
proactive at investigating in the future.

M5. CAST answered that [the comm ssion nenbers] investigate only
what cones across their desks. She stated that there have been
a nunber of contract violations. In those cases, the districts
ask for [the teachers'] licenses.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if there has been any pattern of

unet hi cal conduct or |lack of professional acconplishnment and
skill, [in the cases that have come before the conm ssion].

M5. CAST answered no. She stated that the non-fulfillnment of
teacher contracts has really been the only consistent [issue].

CHAI R BUNDE asked if the recent sexual indiscretions of teachers

in the [ Matanuska- Susitna] area wll come before [the
comm ssion], or if [those teachers] wll get [fired] before
appeal .

MS. CAST responded that she is pretty sure that those teachers
have |ost their credentials. She stated that [the comm ssion]
has not seen [that case] as of yet.

Nunmber 0386

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked Ms. Cast if [the comm ssion] is
entirely reactive or if it is ever proactive.

M5. CAST replied that it is a matter of reaction. She expl ai ned
that after a conplaint is filed, it is investigated by [the
conmi ssion's] director. The nenbers then vote on whether they
want to follow [the director's] recommendations or if they want
[the director] to investigate further.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what the track record of the
comm ssion is - if they generally uphold or overturn
recommendat i ons.

MS. CAST responded that it really depends. She stated that
things are really "picked apart™ by the comm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON renmarked to Ms. Cast and the other

candi dates, "If, indeed, you believe that we should change the
law to allow you to be proactive and not just reactive to the

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 4- April 25, 2001



cases that cone before you, |, for one, wuld sure be glad to
hear fromyou."

Nunmber 0555

PATRICIA TRUMAN, Appointee to the Professional Teachi ng
Practices Conmi ssion, testified via tel econference. She st ated

that she has been teaching in Al aska since 1978 - in the Bush
the Interior, and now in the Matanuska-Susitna Valley - and is
Al aska's Teacher of the Year. She said she has been on the

commi ssion for about a year and a half, and although it has been
nore of a reactive group, it is starting to be nore proactive
She noted that as teacher of the year, she is able to talk with
pre-service teachers and educate them in the behavior that they
need to uphold. She added that the comm ssion has been working
in the universities, and [the comm ssion] is also beginning to
speak with adm nistrators and first-year teachers in districts
about the code of ethics.

Nunber 0727

DI ANE HEARD, Appointee to the Board of Education & Early
Devel opnent, testified via tel econference. She stated that she
thinks all Al askans should take the opportunity to be of sone
service to their conmunities and to the state. She said she has
been involved in the YWA of Anchorage; has served on the
Anchorage W nen's Conm ssion, which provides services to the
muni cipality; and has been appointed by Governor Know es to the
State Board of Education and Early Devel opnent. She remarked
that she feels this gives her an opportunity to serve the state
at a higher level, and to be of sone assistance to the fruition
of the children of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked what she brings to early childhood
devel opnent with an educational background in  business
adm ni strati on.

MS. HEARD st at ed:

Well, | used to be a child. ... | think ny business
background is sinply another diverse view that can be
brought to the table. | don't believe that the
Department of Education and ... Early Devel opnent can
be fully served if all views cone from the sane
per specti ve. I'"d refer to, as an exanple, the report

fromthe task force, which was very business-oriented.
| think even a church is a business; a school is a

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 5- April 25, 2001



busi ness. Services are provided [and] dollars are
needed for the services. So | think there's a lot of
application of ny background to the conversation on
education in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked what her view is on parent-|ed
school s, particularly charter schools.

M5. HEARD responded that she thinks charter schools are an
alternative to the traditional public education, which she would
support. She said she thinks the charter school is a viable
exanpl e of how parent involvenent can be a positive influence on
a child s education. She added that she believes that is
possible through public schools as well. The school
adm nistrators, the teachers, the students, and the parents all
need to be involved in a child s education. She said she
supports the charter schools and the public schools, which are
overseen by the district.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON stated that this spring a few [l egislators]
approached the state school board to be an alternative sponsor

for charter schools. He said, apparently, the nobst successfu
charter school prograns in the nation provide for an alternative
sponsorship in addition to the local district. He asked M.

Heard if she would be supportive of an alternative sponsoring
group for charter schools in [Al aska].

M5. HEARD replied that she thinks her response to that would be
very broad. She stated that there are many things that are done
differently in the Lower 48 than here, and she thinks Al askans
hold thenselves out to be different. She said she thinks
[ Al aska] has opportunities to learn from[the Lower 48] but that
[Alaska] is also in a position, through the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent and the Al aska Legislature, to
show sone new things to those in the Lower 48. She added t hat
while there may be an alternate sponsor, she is not well versed
enough at this tinme to speak directly on who that sponsor m ght
be.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON stated that yesterday in Children's Caucus
there was a young woman who spoke from Kotlik who was visiting a

school in Anchorage. She stated that she was stunned in class
to see that the "city kids" talked and told jokes when the
teacher was trying to teach. She said that was a marked

contrast to hone, where the kids paid attention to the teacher.
He asked M. Heard if teachers ought to be able to wuse
di scipline and control their classes.

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 6- April 25, 2001



M5. HEARD responded that she is not sure the schools can fully
hold students accountable, iif there 1isn't sonme |evel of
di scipline available to the instructor.

Nunmber 1080

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS stated that there seens to be a lot of
interest in both the university and [kindergarten through 12th
grade] in vocational education. He asked Ms. Heard if she has
any thoughts in terns of vocational education, and what the
board could do about it.

M5. HEARD answered that her only thought on that is:

Students need to be educated to a level that gives

t hem choi ce. And that choice nmay nove them to be
imediately in the workforce, or it may nove them to
go to college, but either way they need a choice. | f
students are to have a chance, they have to have a
choi ce. | liken this to going to a restaurant. | f
the nenu only has hot dogs and hanburgers, a student
wi || never ask for halibut because it is not
available. ... The state board of education wll be

neeting in Seward in June, and | am | ooking forward to
going to the Vocational Tech Center.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that as a businessperson Ms. Heard may have
heard from her colleagues who are frustrated that the high
school graduates are functionally illiterate, and not able to
performat a level to take entry-1|evel jobs. He asked what her
position is on the high school conpetency test, and if her view
from the business world is one that seenms to be shared by
ot hers.

MS. HEARD r esponded:

The business world has left ne feeling that there are
not enough qualified people to fill positions. That
does not nean that they're not educated enough, but
maybe not specifically for the responsibilities of the

positions they are applying for. | think that we as a
society have a responsibility to have children
prepared upon exit of high school, to be gainfully

enpl oyed, [and] to participate fully in society. ... |
know through ny reading that it was the business
professions that came to the legislature to bring to

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COW TTEES - 7- April 25, 2001



light that people were not coming out of schools wth
the education they need to take a job. But even with
the exit exam | think there is an onus on the
enployer to determne for [hinself or herself] that
the individual is qualified for the job they're

appl ying for.

Nunber 1260

CYNTHI A CURRAN, Appointee to the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, cane forth and stated that she is an adm nistrator
for teacher certification, has taught in Alaska for over 20
years, and is a nationally board-certified teacher in early
chi | dhood. She said she feels that education is the nost
inmportant thing that is going on in the world today.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if it is fair to say that the Professional
Teaching Practices Commission is the appeals route for teachers
who have been questioned on their practice.

M5. CURRAN answered yes, it is, but [the conmssion] also
realizes that they need to be nore proactive with the new
teachers comng into the state, in letting them know what the
code of ethics is. Therefore, [the comm ssion] has begun sone
di scussi on on what can be done.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked how the commssion is going to be
nore proactive.

M5. CURRAN responded that when the [comm ssion nenbers] neet
with teachers, they can talk to them about what the code of

ethics is. She stated that when teachers receive their
certificates, they are given a panphlet of what the code of
ethics is; however, |ike so many things people get in the mail

it is put aside.
Number 1345

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if there are new issues conmng up
that may need to be readdressed in ternms of ethics.

M5. CURRAN answered that this will be her first term therefore,

she is not famliar with what has cone before the Professiona
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion in the past.

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 8- April 25, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked what problens are being faced in
finding good teachers in Al aska.

M5. CURRAN replied:

The entire United States is facing a teacher shortage.

Teachers are looking for lots of different things:
chal l enges, different experiences. | hesitate to
bring up pay, but that is a factor; many teachers are
| ooki ng el sewhere before they would conme to Al aska.
The spirit of adventure is what really brings people
her e. And having been here for so long, that's what
keeps you here, ... being able to see the state and
work with so nmany different kinds of people. A place
where vyou feel valued as a professional 1is very
i nportant, wher e your opi ni on IS t aken into
consi derati on, where you feel you can rmake a
di fference.

Nunber 1430

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA stated that one of the things that has
been thought about a lot right now in the legislature is
Al aska's extraordinarily high suicide rate, especially wth
young children and teenagers. She asked if norale really does
seep on down through, and if Ms. Curran can think of other ways
to make [Al aska's] schools a place that gives children hope for
the future

MS. CURRAN answer ed:

Being in buildings that aren't crunbling, that are
cheerful places, [and] are safe places helps to nake

children feel that they are val ued. Their parents
cone in; they see that they are valued. I nvol vi ng
whol e conmunities in education - it can't just be done
by the teachers or the principals. It takes a whole
community to have a successful school. And when you
involve everyone in the comunity ... there's nore

prom se for the future. Things are never going to be
perfect, wherever we are, but we can work hard to nake
it better. ... | think that's what we're trying to do
i n educati on.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked Ms. Curran, if the Professional
Teaching Practices Commssion had an opportunity to Dbe

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 9- April 25, 2001



proactive, what she would see as inportant to be proactive
about .

M5. CURRAN responded that teachers need to understand what the
code of ethics is; what is acceptable and not acceptable; the
ways to behave toward parents, students, other faculty, and the
comunity as a whole; and what's inportant in education.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE remarked that the state faces a shortage in
t eachers. He asked Ms. Curran if she thinks it is the role of
[the Professional Teaching Practices Commssion] to begin
| ooking at ways to fill that need, and what sone of those ways
woul d be.

M5. CURRAN replied that she believes the conm ssion has the
right to nmake suggestions to the Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent. However, she said a lot of [the conmi ssion's] tine
is spent in dealing with violations.

Nunber 1620

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN nade a notion to advance the nom nations of
Georgia Sue Cast, Patricia Truman, and Cynthia Curran to the
Prof essi onal Teaching Practices Conmi ssion out of conmttee.
There being no objection, the confirmations were advanced for
all three appoi ntees.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN nmade a notion to advance the nom nation of
Di ane Heard to the Board of Education & Early Devel opnent out of
comittee. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

The joint neeting of the House Special Committee on Education
and the House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Commttee was adjourned at 8:39 a.m [ The m nutes for HB 239
HB 171, HB 218, and SB 86 are found in the 8:40 a.m House
Speci al Commttee on Education m nutes of the same date.]

JT. HOUSE EDU HES COWM TTEES - 10- April 25, 2001



